Registration of a Charge

Company name: EDMONDSON'S PROFESSIONAL SERVICES LIMITED

Company number: 11301014

Received for Electronic Filing: 11/04/2019



Details of Charge

Date of creation: 07/04/2019

Charge code: 1130 1014 0001

Persons entitled: JUST CASH FLOW PLC

Brief description:

Contains fixed charge(s).

Contains floating charge(s).

Contains negative pledge.

Chargor acting as a bare trustee for the property.

Authentication of Form

This form was authorised by: a person with an interest in the registration of the charge.

Authentication of Instrument

Certification statement: I CERTIFY THAT THE ELECTRONIC COPY INSTRUMENT

DELIVERED AS PART OF THIS APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION

IS A CORRECT COPY OF THE ORIGINAL INSTRUMENT.

Certified by: JOHN MCLELLAN



CERTIFICATE OF THE REGISTRATION OF A CHARGE

Company number: 11301014

Charge code: 1130 1014 0001

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales hereby certifies that a charge dated 7th April 2019 and created by EDMONDSON'S PROFESSIONAL SERVICES LIMITED was delivered pursuant to Chapter A1 Part 25 of the Companies Act 2006 on 11th April 2019.

Given at Companies House, Cardiff on 12th April 2019

The above information was communicated by electronic means and authenticated by the Registrar of Companies under section 1115 of the Companies Act 2006





Dated 7/1 April 2019

Just Cash Flow PLC and Edmondson's Professional Services Limited

DEBENTURE

incorporating Fixed and Floating Charges

CONTENTS

1	Definitions and Construction	2
2.	Covenant to Pay	5
3.	Charge and Assignment	
4.	Continuing and Independent Security	
5.	Representations and Warranties	10
6.	Taxes and Other Deductions	desire desired
7,	Undertakings	12
8.	Enforcement	14
9.	Application of Proceeds	17
10.	Appointment and Powers of Receiver	18
11.	New Account	18
12.	Indemnity	19
13.	Set-Off	20
14.	Power of Attorney	20
15.	Further Assurance	20
16.	Miscellaneous	21
17.	Notices	21
18.	Governing Law and Jurisdiction	22
	SCHEDULE 1	23
	Bank Balances	23
	SCHEDULE 2	23
	Charged Contracts	23
	SCHEDULE 3	
	Permitted Security Interests	yrog yang Maria Maria Maria Maria
	SCHEDULE 4	23
	Properties	23
	SCHEDULE 5	23
	Shares	23
	SIGNATURE PAGE	24
	CALCALANT A LANCE	AL."1

THIS DEBENTURE is dated $\frac{7}{4}/\frac{4}{5}$. and made between:

- (1) Edmondson's Professional Services Limited (Company number: 11301014) whose registered office is at 10 Broomfield Lane, Hale, Altrincham, WA15 9AQ (the "Chargor"); and
- (2) Just Cash Flow PLC (Company number 08508165) whose registered office is at 1 Charterhouse Mews, London, United Kingdom, EC1M 6BB (the "Chargee").

BACKGROUND:

- (A) By an agreement (the "Facility Agreement") dated on or about the date hereof and made between (1) the Chargor (as borrower), and (2) the Chargee (as lender), the Chargee has agreed upon and subject to the terms of the Facility Agreement to make available to the Chargor a facility of up to £25,000.00 (the "Facility") for the purposes more particularly specified therein.
- (B) It is a condition precedent to the availability of the Facility that the Chargor shall have executed and delivered this Deed to the Chargee creating fixed and floating charges over its assets and undertaking.

IT IS AGREED as follows:

Definitions and Construction

1.1 Definitions

In this Deed:

"Administrator"

"Bank Balances"

means any person appointed under Schedule B1 Insolvency Act 1986 to manage the Chargor's affairs, business and property;

means all monies (including interest) from time to time standing to the credit of any and all present and future accounts which the Chargor has, or has an interest in, with any bank, financial institution, or other person (including the accounts (if any) specified in Schedule 1 and any other cash cover or suspense account established as a requirement of the Chargee), and all debts represented by any such accounts;

"Business Day"

means a day other than a Saturday or Sunday when financial institutions in London are generally open for banking business;

"Charged Contracts"

means those contracts (if any) brief particulars of which are set out in Schedule 2;

"Collection Account"

means such specially designated account with the Chargee or such other account with such other bank as the Chargee may from time to time direct:

"Default Rate"

means the rate of interest specified in the Facility Agreement if any;

"Distribution Rights"

means:

- (a) all dividends, distributions, interest and other income paid or payable on the relevant Investment or Shares;
- (b) all shares or other property derived from the relevant investment or Shares (whether by way of conversion, consolidation, subdivision, substitution, redemption, bonus, preference, option or otherwise); and
- (c) all other allotments, accretions, rights, benefits and advantages of all kinds accruing, offered or otherwise derived from or incidental to the relevant Investment or Shares;

"Event of Default"

means any of the events listed in Clause 8.1 of this Deed;

"Finance Documents"

means this Deed, the Facility Agreement and any other document between the Chargee and the Chargor;

"Financial Collateral"

shall have the meaning given to that expression in the Financial Collateral Regulations;

"Financial Collateral Regulations"

means the Financial Collateral Arrangements (No. 2) Regulations 2003 (S.I. 2003 No. 3226);

"Group"

means any group of companies for the time being comprising the Chargor, its Subsidiaries, any company of which the Chargor is a Subsidiary and any other Subsidiary of such company;

"Insurances"

means all contracts or policies of insurance of whatever nature which from time to time are taken out or maintained by or on behalf of the Chargor or (to the extent of its relevant interest) in which the Chargor has an interest;

"Insurance Proceeds"

means the proceeds of any insurance claim received by the Chargor, after deduction of any reasonable expenses incurred in relation to the relevant claim and payable by the Chargor to any person which is not a member of the Group together with the benefit of all bonuses, profits, returns of premium and other benefits of whatever nature arising by virtue of the Chargor's ownership of the Insurances and all interest on any of the foregoing;

"Investment"

means any negotiable instrument, certificate of deposit, debenture, share or other investment (as specified for the purposes of Section 22 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 as at the date of this Deed) now or in the future owned by the Chargor including (save where the context otherwise requires) the Shares; and

"Loss"

means any loss, demand, liability, obligation, claim, action proceeding, penalty, fine, damage, adverse judgement, order or other sanction, fee and out of pocket cost and expense (including any fee and out of pocket cost and expense of any legal counsel) and any VAT thereon, in each case on a full indemnity basis;

"Permitted Security Interest"

means a Security Interest approved by the Chargee in writing prior to the date of this Deed and set out in Schedule 3;

"Properties"

means all freehold and leasehold properties (whether registered or unregistered) and all commonhold properties, now or in the future (and from time to time) owned by the Chargor, or in which the Chargor holds an interest (including (but not limited to) the properties (if any) which are briefly described in Schedule 4) and Property means any one of them together with (in all cases) all proceeds of sale arising from such Property, the benefit of all covenants given in respect of such Property and any monies paid or payable in respect of such covenants;

"Receivables"

means all present and future book and other debts, receivables, commissions, revenues, claims and choses in action of whatsoever nature and howsoever and wheresoever arising, due or owing or to become due or owing to or acquired by the Chargor and the full benefit of all rights and remedies relating thereto including, but not limited to, all claims for damages and other remedies for non-payment of the same and all claims

against insurers and other Security Interests, guarantees and other security and all proceeds and forms of remittance in respect of the same; and

"Receiver"

means any receiver, manager or other receiver or similar officer appointed by the Chargee in respect of all or part of the Secured Property and shall, if allowed by law, include an administrative receiver:

"Security Financial Collateral Arrangements"

shall have the meaning given to that expression in the Financial Collateral Regulations;

"Security Interest"

means any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien or other security interest securing any obligation of any person or any other agreement having similar effect

"Taxation"

means any tax, levy, impost, duty or other charge or withholding of a similar nature (including any penalty or interest payable in connection with any failure to pay or delay in paying any of the same) and "Tax" and "Taxes" shall be construed accordingly;

"Secured Obligations"

means all and any monies and liabilities which are from time to time (and whether on or at any time after demand) due, owing or incurred in whatsoever manner to the Chargee by the Chargor, whether as principal or surety and whether or not the Chargee shall have been an original party to the relevant transaction, and including all fees, interest, discount, commission and other lawful charges or expenses together with any VAT thereon, in each case calculated on a full indemnity basis, which the Chargee may in the course of its business charge or incur in respect of any of those matters or for keeping the Chargor's account and so that interest shall be computed and compounded according to the usual rates and practice of the Chargee as well after as before any demand made or decree obtained under or in relation to this Deed;

"Secured Property"

means all of the property, undertaking and assets from time to time subject or expressed to be subject to the Security Interests created by this deed or any part of those assets;

"Security Document"

means this Deed and any other Security Interest documented and/or created at any time by the Chargor in favour of the Chargee as security for the Secured Obligations.

"Security Interest"

means any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien or other security interest securing any obligation of any person or any other agreement having similar effect;

"Shares"

means all shares (if any) specified in Schedule 5 and also all other stocks, shares, debentures, bonds, warrants, coupons or other securities now or in the future owned by the Chargor from time to time or any in which it has an interest;

"Subsidiary"

means a subsidiary undertaking within the meaning of Section 1159 of the Companies Act 2006; and

"VAT"

means value added tax as provided for in the Value Added Taxes Act 1994 and any other tax of a similar fiscal nature.

1.2 Construction

(a) Any reference in this Deed to:

- (i) "assets" includes present and future properties, undertakings, revenues, rights and benefits of every description;
- (ii) this Deed, a Finance Document or any other agreement, deed or instrument is a reference to this Deed, that Finance Document or that other agreement, deed or instrument as amended varied, superseded or novated in each case from time to time:
- (iii) "indebtedness" includes any obligation (whether incurred as principal or as surety) for the payment or repayment of money, whether present or future, actual or contingent;
- (iv) a "person" includes any natural person, firm, company, corporation, government, state or agency of a state or any association, trust, partnership or unincorporated body (whether or not having separate legal personality) or any two or more of the foregoing;
- (v) the "Chargor" or the "Chargee" shall where the context permits, include such person's successors in title and permitted assignees or permitted transferees and any persons deriving title under such person;
- (vi) a "regulation" includes any regulation, rule, official directive, request or guideline (whether or not having the force of law) of any governmental, intergovernmental or supranational body, agency, department or regulatory, self-regulatory or other authority or organisation;
- (vii) a provision of law is a reference to that provision as extended, amended or reenacted from time to time;
- (viii) a clause or schedule is a reference to a clause of or schedule to this Deed;
- (ix) a time of day is a reference to London time; and
- (x) a default which is "continuing" is a reference to a default which has not been remedied or waived.
- (b) Words importing the plural include the singular (and vice versa).
- (c) The eiusdem generis rule shall not apply and accordingly the interpretation of general words shall not be restricted by being preceded by words including a particular class of acts, matters or things or by being followed by particular examples.
- (d) Section, clause and schedule headings are for ease of reference only and shall not affect the interpretation of this Deed.

2... Covenant to Pay

2.1 Coveriant to pay

The Chargor as primary obligor and not merely as surety, hereby covenants with the Chargee that it will pay, discharge and perform on demand the Secured Obligations and in the manner provided for in the Finance Documents.

2.2 Interest

If the Chargor fails to pay when due any amount under this Deed then that amount shall bear interest (as well after as before any judgment and payable on demand) at the Default Rate from the due date until the date that such amount is unconditionally and irrevocably paid in fulf.

3. Charge and Assignment

3.1 Charge

The Chargor with full title guarantee hereby charges and assigns to the Chargee absolutely as a continuing security for the payment, discharge, and performance of the Secured Obligations;

- (a) by way of legal mortgage, the Properties (if any) identified in Schedule 4;
- (b) by way of fixed charge,
 - (i) all its Properties (but excluding any Property made subject to a valid legal mortgage under clause 3.1(a) above), all other interest in its Properties, and any rights under any licence or other agreement or document which gives the Chargor a right to enter upon or use land wherever situated;
 - (ii) the Chargor's plant and machinery now or in the future owned by it (but not including plant and machinery charged under clause 3.1(a) and 3.1(b)(i) above) and the benefit of all contracts, licences and warranties relating to the same;
 - (iii) all of the Chargor's Bank Balances;
 - (iv) all of the Chargor's Investments together with all Distribution Rights from time to time accruing to or in such Investments;
 - (v) the Chargor's goodwill;
 - (vi) the Chargor's uncalled share capital;
 - (vii) the Chargor's Receivables;
 - (viii) to the extent that the Insurances and/or Insurance Proceeds are incapable for any reason of being effectively assigned pursuant to clause 3.1(c)(ii) below but are capable of being effectively charged, by way of first fixed charge, the Insurances applicable to the Chargor and all Insurance Proceeds either now or in the future held by, written in favour of, or payable to the Chargor or in which the Chargor is otherwise interested;
- (c) by way of assignment (to the fullest extent capable of assignment);
 - (i) the Charged Contracts and also any and all damages, compensation, remuneration, profit, royalties, fees, rent or income which the Chargor may derive from or be awarded or be entitled to in respect of the Charged Contracts;
 - (ii) the Insurances and the benefit of all Insurance Proceeds.
- (d) By way of floating charge, all the undertaking, property, assets and rights of the Chargor other than that effectively mortgaged, charged or assigned under any other provision of this Deed.

3.2 Failure of Assignment

To the extent that any such right, title and interest as is referred to in clause 3.1(c) is not assignable or capable of assignment, the assignment of it purported to be effected by such clause shall operate as an assignment of any and all compensation, damages, income, profit or rent which the Chargor may derive from it or be awarded or entitled to in respect of it, in each case as a continuing security for the payment or discharge in full of the Secured Obligations.

3.3 Full Title Guarantee and implied Covenants

All the security created or given under this Deed is made with full title guarantee in accordance with the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994.

3.4 Notice of assignment or charge

The Chargor shall forthwith upon receiving a request to that effect from the Chargee give notice of each assignment of its right, title and interest (if any) in and to:

- (a) the Insurances and Insurance Proceeds, by serving a notice in such form as prescribed by the Chargee upon each of the other parties to the Insurances;
- (b) the Charged Contracts by serving a notice in such form as prescribed by the Chargee upon each of the other parties to the Charged Contracts,

and the Chargor shall procure that within 14 days of the date of its receiving such request each such other party delivers an acknowledgement to the Chargee in such form prescribed by the Chargee.

3.5 Exercise of rights under Charged Contracts

- (a) Whilst no Event of Default exists and is continuing the Chargee shall permit the Chargor to exercise its rights under any of the Charged Contracts to which it is party, provided that the exercise of those rights in the manner proposed would not result in an Event of Default.
- (b) Where an Event of Default exists, and is continuing the Chargor shall exercise its rights under any of the Charged Contracts in accordance with the instructions of the Chargee.

3.6 Conversion of Floating Charge to Fixed Charge by notice.

The Chargee may by written notice to the Chargor convert the floating charge created by this Deed into a fixed charge as regards all or any of the Secured Property specified in that notice if the Chargee in its reasonable opinion considers those assets to be in danger of being seized or sold under any form of distress, attachment, execution or other legal process or to be otherwise in jeopardy.

3.7 Automatic Conversion of a Floating Charge

The floating charge created by clause 3.1(d) shall automatically and immediately (without notice) be converted into a fixed charge over the relevant Secured Property if:

- (a) the Chargor
 - creates, or attempts to create, over all or any part of the Secured Property a Security Interest (other than a Permitted Security Interest) without the prior written consent of the Chargee; or
 - disposes, or attempts to dispose of all or any part of the Secured Property (other than property that is only subject to the floating charge while it remains uncrystallised, which property may be disposed of in the ordinary course of business); or
- (b) a Receiver is appointed over all or any of the Secured Property that is subject to the floating charge; or
- (c) any person levies (or attempts to levy) any distress, attachment, execution or other process against all or any part of the Secured Property; or
- (d) the Chargee receives notice of the appointment of, or a proposal or an intention to appoint, an Administrator of the Chargor; or
- (e) an Event of Default is continuing unwaived.

3.8 Assets acquired after any Floating Charge Crystallisation

Any asset acquired by the Chargor after any crystallisation of the floating charge created under this Deed which but for such crystallisation would be subject to a floating charge, shall (unless the Chargee confirms in writing to the contrary) be charged to the Chargee by way of a fixed charge.

3.9 Insolvency Act

Paragraph 14 of Schedule B1 to the insolvency Act 1986 shall apply to the floating charges created by this Deed to the intent that each such charge is a "qualifying floating charge" within the meaning of that paragraph.

3.10 Release and Transfer

- (a) Subject to clause 3.10(b) below, the Chargee shall, at the cost of the Chargor, release and transfer to the Chargor the Secured Property upon the full irrevocable and unconditional performance and discharge of the Secured Obligations.
- (b) Notwithstanding any discharge, release or settlement from time to time between the Chargee and the Charger, if any Security Interest, disposition or payment granted or made to the Chargee or any Lender in respect of the Secured Obligations by the Chargor or any other person is avoided or set aside or ordered to be surrendered, paid away, refunded or reduced by virtue of any provision, law or enactment relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, liquidation, winding-up, composition or arrangement for the time being in force or for any other reason, the Chargee shall be entitled thereafter to enforce this Deed as if no such discharge, release or settlement had occurred.

3.11 Registration

- (a) The Chargor shall apply to the Land Registrar to enter on the register against the Title Number or Title Numbers given in respect of the Properties identified in Schedule 4 to this Deed (if any) or where no Title Number is specified in respect of any Property or any part of it, against the Title Number or Title Numbers allocated to the Property or such part by the Land Registry and on the register of all future Properties;
 - (i) On the Land Registry form RX1, a restriction in the following terms:
 - "No disposition of the registered estate by the proprietor of the registered estate or by the proprietor of any registered charge is to be registered without a written consent signed by the proprietor for the time being of the charge dated [DATE] in favour of Just Cash Flow PLC referred to in the charges register, or, if appropriate, signed on such proprietor's behalf by its duly authorised officer; and
 - (ii) upon receipt of the Land Registry form CH2 duly completed by the Chargee, notice of an obligation to make further advances.
- (b) The Chargor must submit the relevant applications no later than the date of submission of the application for registration of security created by this Deed and will pay all expenses incurred in connection with the applications and in relation to any future filings or registrations, as soon as practicable following the Chargor obtaining any relevant assets or rights;
- (c) The Chargee, in its absolute discretion may make any of the applications referred to in clause 3.11(a) in place of the Chargor and in such case the Chargor consents to the entry of the relevant restriction and will pay all expenses incurred in connection with each application.

3.12 Incomplete Details

The fact that no or incomplete details of any particular Secured Property are included or inserted in any relevant Schedule shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the charges created by this Deed.

4. Continuing and Independent Security

4.1 Continuing Security

This Deed and the security hereby created shall remain in full force and effect by way of continuing security notwithstanding the bankruptcy, administration, insolvency or liquidation or any incapacity or change in the constitution or status of the Chargor, or any other person and

in particular shall not be, nor be considered as satisfied by any intermediate discharge or payment on account of any liabilities or any settlement of accounts between the Chargor and the Chargee.

4.2 Additional Security

This Deed and the security hereby created shall be in addition to and not in substitution for or derogation of any other security (whether given by the Charger or otherwise) now or from time to time hereafter held by the Chargee in respect of or in connection with the Secured Obligations.

4.3 Unrestricted Enforcement

The Chargee need not before exercising any of the rights, powers or remedies conferred upon it by this Deed or by law:

- (a) take action or obtain judgment against the Chargor, or any other person in any court;
- (b) make or file any claim or prove in a bankruptcy, winding-up or liquidation of the Chargor or of any other person; or
- (c) enforce or seek to enforce the recovery of the moneys and liabilities hereby secured by any other security.

4.4 Further Assurance

- (a) The Chargor must at its own expense promptly do all such acts and things and execute such documents (including deeds, assignments, transfers, mortgages, charges, notices, instructions, assurances, agreements and instruments) as the Chargee may reasonably require in favour of the Chargee or its nominee(s):
 - (i) to perfect and protect (including against any change in or revised interpretation of any law or regulation) the security created (or intended to be created) under or evidenced by this Deed or for the exercise of any rights, powers and remedies of the Chargee provided by this or any other deed or document or by law; or
 - (ii) to confer on the Chargee security over any property or assets of the Chargor located in any jurisdiction equivalent or similar to the security intended to be conferred by or pursuant to this Deed; or
 - (iii) (in its absolute discretion) to facilitate the realisation of the assets which are, or are intended to be, the subject of this Deed; or
 - (iv) otherwise for enforcing the same or exercising any of the Chargee's rights, powers, authorities or discretions under this Deed,

and the Chargor shall take all such action as is available to it (including the making of all filings and registrations and the payment of all fees and taxes) as may be necessary for the creation, perfection, protection, maintenance or enhancement of any security conferred or intended to be conferred on the Chargee pursuant to this Deed.

(b) Any Security Document required to be executed by the Chargor pursuant to clause 4.4(a) will be prepared at the cost of the Chargor, and will be in such form and will contain such provisions as the Chargee may reasonably require.

5. Representations and Warranties

5.1 Representations and Warranties

The Chargor represents and warrants to the Chargee that:

- (a) Status: the Chargor is a limited liability company duly incorporated and validly existing under the laws of England and Wales and has full power, authority and legal right to own its property and assets and to carry on its business as such business is now being conducted;
- (b) Power and Authority: the Chargor has all legal power and authority to enter into and deliver this Deed and perform its obligations under this Deed and all action (including any corporate action) required to authorise the execution and delivery of this Deed and the performance of its obligations under this Deed has been duly taken;
- (c) Legal Validity: this Deed constitutes or, when so executed and delivered, will constitute the legal, valid and binding obligations of the Chargor enforceable in accordance with its terms;
- (d) Non-conflict with laws: the entry into and performance of this Deed and the transactions contemplated by this Deed do not and will not conflict with or result in a breach of:
 - (i) any law, judgment or regulation or any official or judicial order;
 - (ii) the constitutional documents of the Chargor; or
 - (iii) any agreement or document to which the Chargor is a party or which is binding upon it or any of its assets or revenues or any covenant, reservation, condition, right or other matter binding on the Chargor, its assets or revenues, nor cause any limitation placed on it or the powers of its directors to be exceeded or result in the creation or imposition of any Security Interest on any part of the Secured Property pursuant to the provisions of any such agreement or document or which materially adversely affect the Secured Property;
- (e) No consents: no consent of, giving of notice to, or registration with, or taking of any other action in respect of any governmental authority or agency in any relevant jurisdiction or any shareholders or creditors of the Chargor is required for or in connection with the execution, validity, delivery and admissibility in evidence in proceeding of this Deed, or the carrying out by the Chargor of any of the transactions contemplated hereby;
- (f) Litigation: no litigation, arbitration or administrative proceeding is currently taking place or pending or, to the knowledge of the Chargor, threatened against the Chargor or its assets which would adversely affect its ability to perform its obligations under the Finance Documents;
- (g) Winding Up: no meeting has been convened for winding up the Chargor, no such step is intended by it and, so far as it is aware, no petition, application or the like is outstanding for winding up the Chargor;
- (h) Taxes on Payments: all payments to be made by the Chargor under this Deed may be made by the Chargor free and clear of, and without deduction for, Taxes and no deductions or withholdings are required to be made therefrom;
- (i) Pari Passu Ranking: the obligations of the Chargor hereunder rank at least pari passu
 with all its other present and future unsecured obligations save for any obligations
 mandatorily preferred by law and not by contract;
- (j) Tax Liabilities: the Chargor has complied with all Taxation laws in all jurisdictions in which it is subject to Taxation and has paid all Taxes due and payable by it; no material claims are being asserted against it with respect to Taxes;

- (k) No Default: no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing or might reasonably be expected to result from the execution of this Deed or from effect being given to its provisions;
- Sole and beneficial owner: the Chargor is or will be the sole, absolute and beneficial owner of the Secured Property and the Chargor has good and marketable title thereto;
- (m) Security Interest: no Security Interest exists with respect to any of the Chargor's right, title, interest or benefit in the Secured Property other than the Security Interests created by this Deed and the Permitted Security Interests;
- (n) Third party right: it has not granted in favour of any other person any interest in or any option or other rights with respect to any of the Secured Property other than the Security Interests created by this Deed and the Permitted Security Interests;
- (o) Particulars of the Property: the particulars of any Property set out in Schedule 4 are accurate and the Chargor has good and marketable title thereto;
- (p) Receivables: all Receivables are fully collectable in the ordinary course of business.
- (q) Matters affecting Shares:
 - the Shares specified in Schedule 5 opposite the Chargor's name are at the date of this Deed the only shares legally and beneficially owned by the Chargor; and
 - (ii) the Chargor is and will remain the sole beneficial owner of the Shares and (save where the Shares have been registered in the name of the Chargee or its nominee pursuant to the provisions of this Deed) the Chargor and/or its nominee will remain the absolute legal owner of the Shares.

5.2 Continuing Representation and Warranty

The Chargor also represents and warrants to and undertakes with the Chargee that the foregoing representations and warranties will be true and accurate throughout the continuance of this Deed with reference to the facts and circumstances from time to time.

6. Taxes and Other Deductions

6.1 No Withholding

All payments to be made by the Chargor or any other person under this Deed shall be made in full in immediately available sterling without any set off or counterclaim whatsoever, free and clear of any taxes, deductions or withholdings save as required by law.

6.2 Gross-up

If at any time the Chargor or any other person is required to make any deduction or withholding in respect of Taxes or otherwise from any payment due under this Deed for the account of the Chargee, the sum due from the Chargor in respect of such payment shall be increased to the extent necessary to ensure that, after the making of such deduction or withholding, the Chargee receives on the due date for such payment (and retains, free from and clear of any Taxes or otherwise) a net sum equal to the sum which it would have received had no such deduction or withholding been required to be made and the Chargor shall indemnify the Chargee against any Loss incurred by it by reason of any failure of the Chargor to make any such deduction or withholding or by reason of any increased payment not being made on the due date for such payment.

7. Undertakings

7.1 Positive Undertakings

The Chargor hereby undertakes and agrees with the Chargee that throughout the continuance of this Deed and so long as the Secured Obligations or any part thereof remains owing that, unless the Chargee otherwise agrees in writing it will:

(a) **Perform:** at all times comply with the terms (express or implied) of this Deed and of all contracts relating to the Secured Obligations;

(b) Insurance:

- (i) insure and keep insured the Secured Property of an insurable nature against loss or damage by fire and other usual risks and by such other risks and contingencies as the Chargee may require, in such amounts as may be specified from time to time by the Chargee or, in the absence of any such specification, in their full insurable values and maintain such other insurances, including third party and public liability insurances, as are commonly maintained by prudent companies carrying on similar business or activities, in each case with such insurance company or office and through such insurance brokers as the Chargee shall approve; and
- (ii) if required by the Chargee, prepare and promptly produce to the Chargee evidence satisfactory to the Chargee that a note of the Chargee's interest is endorsed upon all Insurances maintained by the Chargor;
- (c) Payment of Premium: punctually pay all premiums or sums of money necessary for effecting such insurances as aforesaid and endorse over, produce or deliver to the Chargee all policy or policies of insurance and the receipts for every such payment.
- (d) Application of Monies Received: apply any monies received by the Chargor under any insurances in repairing or reinstating the property or assets in respect of which the monies were received or, if the Chargee shall so direct, in or towards satisfaction of the Secured Obligations;
- (e) Maintenance of Property and Assets: keep all the Secured Property in good and substantial repair and in good working order and condition and not pull down, after, develop, dismantle or remove any of the same except in the ordinary course of use, repair, maintenance or improvement;
- (f) Pay Outgoings: punctually pay all rents, rates, taxes, duties, fees, transportation costs, go-down charges, impositions and outgoings of any kind whatsoever which may be payable in respect of the Secured Property and observe and perform all the covenants, terms and conditions contained in any title deeds, leases or other documents of title under which any property hereby charged is for the time being held provided that if the Chargor defaults in making any such payments or in the performance or observance of any of the above undertakings or in effecting insurance or in paying insurance premiums or in repairing, the Chargee may make such payments or perform and observe such undertakings, effect such insurance or repairs or pay such insurance premiums and the Chargee in so doing together with interest thereon at such rates as the Chargee may from time to time determine from the time of the same having been paid or incurred and until such repayment such monies together with such interest shall be secured by this Deed;
- (g) Access to Secured Property: permit the Chargee or any other person appointed by it at all reasonable times to have access to and view the state, order and condition of the Secured Property and take inventories thereof;
- (h) Notice: attach to each item of Secured Property, if required by the Chargee, a notice in such conspicuous place and in such form as the Chargee may specify stating that such item is subject to a charge in favour of the Chargee;

- (i) Documents of Title: deposit with the Chargee all documents of title relating to the Secured Property when called upon by the Chargee;
- (j) Registration of Deed: forthwith notify the Chargee of any proposal or contract made by the Chargor for the acquisition by the Chargor of any land or immovable property or any interest therein situated in the United Kingdom and, in the case of any such land or immovable property situated outside the United Kingdom, forthwith give notice thereof to the Chargee and such other information as the Chargee may require and do all such acts as may, in the opinion of the Chargee, be necessary or desirable for protecting or perfecting the security hereby created over or in respect of such land or immovable property;
- (k) Discharge of Debts: punctually pay and discharge all debts and obligations which by law have priority over the security hereby constituted;
- (I) Realisation of Receivables: get in and realise all Receivables in the ordinary course of business and pay into such bank account as the Chargee may direct all monies which it may receive in respect of the same;
- (m) Receivables: upon a request from the Chargee, give notice of the charges hereby created in respect of the Receivables to the relevant debtor in such form as the Chargee may direct and from time to time give such further notices in respect of the Receivables as the Chargee may require and collect (as agent for the Chargee) all Receivables and pay into the Collection Account or such other account as the Chargee may from time to time direct all money which it shall receive in respect of such Receivables forthwith upon receipt and pending such payment it will hold all such monies upon trust for the Chargee;

(n) Charged Contracts:

- (i) perform all of its obligations under the Charged Contracts in a diligent and timely manner; and
- (ii) promptly inform the Chargee of any material disputes relating to the Charged Contracts.

(o) Shares and other investments:

- it will immediately upon receipt of the same deliver to the Chargee copies of all notices, circulars, letters, reports, accounts and other communications with shareholders relating to its holding of the Shares;
- (ii) it will pay all calls or other payments due and payable in respect of any of the Shares and if it fails to do so the Chargee may pay the calls or other payments on its behalf;
- (iii) forthwith upon execution of this deed or upon any subsequent acquisition by it of Shares which are held with CREST or otherwise in uncertificated form, it will provide to the Lender particulars of such Shares in which it is interested and will give such instructions and enter into such documents as the Lender may reasonably require to perfect the security over such Shares created by this Deed:
- (iv) forthwith upon execution of this Deed deliver to the Lender (or as it shall direct) all bearer instruments, share certificates and other documents of title to or evidence of ownership of the Investments and/or the Distribution Rights owned by it or in which it has an interest together with (in the case of Shares, other than bearer instruments, held in certificated form) instruments of transfer in respect of each of the same executed in blank (except for the number and class of Shares and the name of the transferor) and left undated;

- (v) if it acquires Investments, whether pursuant to its Distribution Rights or for any other reason, after the date of this Deed the provisions of clause 3.1(b)(iv) and the remaining provisions of this Clause 7.1(o) shall apply to such Investments.
- (p) Event of Default. immediately it is aware, inform the Chargee of the occurrence of any Event of Default or prospective Event of Default

7.2 Negative Undertakings

The Chargor undertakes and agrees with the Chargee throughout the continuance of this Deed and so long as the Secured Obligations or any part thereof remains owing that, unless the Chargee otherwise agrees in writing, it will not:

- (a) Dealing: sell, transfer, part with possession of or otherwise assign, deal with or dispose of or grant any option or right of first refusal over the Secured Property or any interest therein or attempt to agree to do any of the same except, in the case of Secured Property other than the Properties, by way of sale at full value in the usual course of trading as now conducted and for the purpose of carrying on its business, or assign, discount or factor any of the Receivables;
- (b) Negative Pledge: create or attempt or agree to create or permit to arise or exist any Security Interest except the Permitted Security Interests over the Secured Property or any interest therein (except under or pursuant to this Deed) and no Security Interest purported to be created in breach of this restriction shall take priority over or rank pari passu with this Deed;
- (c) Depreciate Value: do or cause or permit to be done anything which may in any way depreciate, jeopardise or otherwise prejudice the value of the Chargee's security hereunder;
- (d) Collection Account: without the prior consent of the Chargee, withdraw all or any monies from time to time standing to the credit of the Collection Account or any other Bank Balances charged to the Chargee pursuant to clause 3.1(b)(iii).
- (e) Shares and other Investments: save with the prior written consent of the Chargee:
 - take any action by or as a consequence of which the rights attaching to the Shares are altered or diluted or the issued capital of any of the companies whose shares are charged by this Deed increased;
 - (ii) participate in any rights issue relating to the Shares; nor
 - (iii) apply for, or consent to, the conversion of any Shares held in certificated form into uncertificated form.
- (f) Charged Contracts: make or agree to make any amendments or modifications to the Charged Contracts or waive any of its rights under the Charged Contracts or exercise any right to terminate any of the Charged Contracts except with the prior written consent of the Chargee.

8. Enforcement

8.1 Events of Default

The security created by this Deed shall become enforceable immediately upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

- (a) if the Chargor purports or attempts to create any Security Interest (except under or as permitted by this Deed) over all or any part of the Secured Property or any third party asserts a claim in respect thereof; or
- (b) the Chargor failing to pay or discharge any of the Secured Obligations when the same ought to be paid or discharged (whether on demand or at scheduled maturity or by acceleration or otherwise as the case may be); or

- (c) the Chargor being in breach of any of the obligations binding on the Chargor under any Finance Document or under any other agreement between the Chargor and the Chargee and such breach (if capable or remedy) has not been remedied to the satisfaction of the Chargee within 14 days of the Chargee serving notice calling upon the Chargor to do so; or
- (d) the Chargor becoming unable to pay its debts as they fall due (and/or the value of the Chargor's assets being less than the amount of its liabilities, taking into account the Chargor's contingent and prospective liabilities), the Chargor commencing negotiations with any one or more of its creditors with a view to the general readjustment or rescheduling of its indebtedness or making a general assignment for the benefit of a composition with its creditors; or
- (e) the Chargor passing any resolution or taking any corporate action or a petition being presented or proceedings commenced or any action is taken by any person for its winding up, dissolution, administration or re-organisation or for the appointment of a receiver, administrative receiver, Administrator, trustee or similar officer of it or of any or all of its revenues and assets; or
- (f) the Chargor threatening to or ceasing its business; or
- (g) a distress, execution, attachment or other legal process being levied or enforced upon or sued out against all or any part of the assets of the Chargor and remaining undischarged for seven days.

and thereupon and at any time thereafter (whether or not any of the above events is continuing) without prejudice to any other rights of the Chargee, the powers of sale under the Law of Property Act 1925 shall immediately be exercisable and the Chargee may in its absolute discretion enforce all or any part of the security created by this Deed as it sees fit.

8.2 Enforcement of Security

- (a) Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default the Chargee may, at any time or times thereafter and without further notice or restriction:
 - (i) exercise any and all rights of the Chargor under or in connection with the Secured Property;
 - (ii) perform and exercise any rights of the Chargor in relation to the Secured Property as if it were a party thereto in place of the Chargor and for those purposes do all such things and execute all such documents as the Chargor may have done;
 - (iii) sell to any person all or any part of its right, title and interest in and to the Secured Property upon such terms as the Chargee shall determine and otherwise exercise the powers of sale under the Law of Property Act 1925;
 - (iv) collect, receive or compromise and give a good discharge for any and all moneys and claims for moneys due and to become due for the time being comprised in the Secured Property;
 - settle, discharge, compound, release or compromise any claims whatsoever in connection with the Secured Property or in any way relating to the security created by this Deed;
 - (vi) appoint a Receiver (whether acting alone or jointly with any other person) of the Secured Property or any part thereof; and/or
 - (vii) appoint an Administrator for the purposes of and upon the terms contained in Schedule B1 Insolvency Act 1986,

and otherwise put into force and effect all rights, powers and remedies available to it, at law or otherwise, as Chargee of the Secured Property.

- (k) Until the occurrence of an Event of Default but not thereafter while such Event of Default is continuing:
 - the Chargor will be entitled to receive and retain all dividends, distributions, interest and other monies paid on or derived from the Investments; and
 - (ii) will be entitled to exercise all voting and other rights and powers attaching to the Shares, provided that it will not exercise any such voting rights or powers in a manner which would prejudice the value of, or the ability of the Chargee to realise, the security created by this Deed; and
 - (iii) shall give to the Chargee reasonable notice of the manner in which it proposes to exercise the rights and powers referred to in clause (k)(ii).
- (I) Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default and while it is continuing any dividends, distributions interest or other monies paid on or derived from the Investments will be received by the Chargor on trust for the Chargee and paid into a separate account or otherwise dealt with as directed by the Chargee, and the Chargor shall if the Chargee so requires thereafter exercise all voting and other rights and powers attaching to the Shares as the Chargee shall direct.
- At any time when any investments are registered in the name of the Chargee or its (m)nominee and for so long as there is no Event of Default which is continuing, the Chargee will (so far as is consistent with the security created by this Deed) exercise any applicable voting or other rights and powers in accordance with the directions of the Chargor and account to the Chargor for any dividends, payments or other distributions attributable to such Investments, but upon the occurrence of an Event of Default and so long as it is continuing, the Chargee may exercise or refrain from exercising such voting or other rights and powers as it thinks fit and may retain any such dividends, payments or other distributions, but in any case the Chargee will not be under any duty to ensure that any dividend, distributions or other monies payable in respect of those Investments are duly and promptly paid or received by it or its nominee or to verify that the correct amounts are paid or received by it or its nominee or to take any action in connection with the taking up of any (or any offer of any) stocks, shares, rights, monies or other property paid, distributed, accruing or offered at any time by way of interest, dividend, redemption, bonus, rights, preference, option, warrant or otherwise on or in respect of or in substitution for, any of those Investments.
- 9. Application of Proceeds
- 9.1 All monies received by the Chargee and/or any Receiver under this Deed shall be applied in or towards satisfaction of the Secured Obligations in such order of priority as the Chargee in its absolute discretion may determine (subject to the prior discharge of all liabilities having priority thereto by law) and, subject to any such determination, in the following order of priority:
 - (a) in payment of the costs charges and expenses of and incidental to the Receiver's appointment and the payment of his remuneration;
 - (b) in payment or satisfaction of all costs, charges and liabilities incurred and payments made by or on behalf of the Chargee in connection with the exercise of any powers hereunder and in preserving or attempting to preserve this security or the Secured Property and of all outgoings paid by the Chargee (including for the avoidance of doubt the cost, charges and expenses of and incidental to the appointment of an Administrator and the payment of his remuneration); and
 - in or towards reduction of the remaining Secured Obligations in such manner as the Chargee shall determine;
 - (d) in or towards the claims of those persons entitled to any surplus.
- 9.2 All monies received by virtue of any Insurances maintained or effected in respect of the Secured Property shall be paid to the Chargee (or if not paid by the insurers directly to the Chargee shall be held on trust for the Chargee) and shall (subject as otherwise provided in the documents

- (e) the non-performance or non-observance of any of the undertakings and agreements on the part of the Chargor herein contained;
- (f) releasing or re-assigning this Deed upon the expiry of the Security Period; and
- (g) of any matter or thing done or omitted to be done relating in any way whatsoever to the Secured Property.

12.2 Currency Indemnity

If an amount due to the Chargee from the Chargor in one currency (the "first currency") is received by the Chargee in another currency (the "second currency"), the Chargor's obligations to the Chargee in respect of such amount shall only be discharged to the extent that the Chargee may purchase the first currency with the second currency in accordance with its normal banking practice. If the amount of the first currency which may be so purchased (after deducting any costs of exchange and any other related costs) is less than the amount so due, the Chargor shall indemnify the Chargee against the shortfall.

12.3 Payment and Security

The Chargee and any Receiver may retain and pay out of any money in the hands of the Chargee or any Receiver all sums necessary to effect the indemnities contained in this clause 12 and all sums payable by the Chargor under this clause 12 shall form part of the monies hereby secured.

13. Set-Off

The Chargor agrees that the Chargee may at any time without notice, notwithstanding any settlement of account or other matter whatsoever, combine or consolidate all or any obligation it owes to the Chargor in whatever currency and set-off any sum in respect of such obligation in or towards satisfaction of the Secured Obligations.

14. Power of Attorney

14.1 Power of Attorney

The Chargor irrevocably appoints the Chargee (whether or not a Receiver or Administrator has been appointed) and any persons deriving title under it by way of security jointly and severally to be its attorney (with full power of substitution) and in its name or otherwise on its behalf and as its act and deed to sign, seal, execute, deliver, perfect and do all deeds, instruments, acts and things which may be required or which the Chargee shall think proper or expedient for carrying out any obligations imposed on the Chargor hereunder or for exercising any of the powers conferred by this Deed or for giving to the Chargee the full benefit of this security and so that this appointment shall operate to authorise the Chargee to do on behalf of the Chargor anything it can lawfully do by an attorney. The Chargor ratifies and confirms and agrees to ratify and confirm any deed, instrument, act or thing which such attorney or substitute may execute or do.

14.2 Delegation

The Chargee may delegate to any person all or any of the rights or powers conferred on it by this Deed or by law.

15. Further Assurance

The Chargor agrees that at any time and from time to time upon the written request of the Chargee it will promptly and duly execute and deliver any and all such further instruments and documents as the Chargee may deem desirable for the purpose of obtaining the full benefit of this Deed and of the rights and powers herein granted.

17.2 The address and fax number of each party for any communication or document to be made or delivered under or in connection with this Deed is:

in the case of the Chargor:

Fax

Attention: Winfred Edmondson

and, in the case of the Chargee:

Fax:

Attention: John McLellan

or any substitute address or fax number as one party may notify to the other by not less than 5 Business Days' notice.

- 17.3 Any communication or document made or delivered by one person to another under or in connection with this Deed will only be effective:
 - (a) if by way of fax, when received in legible form; or
 - (b) if by way of letter, when it has been left at the relevant address or two Business Days after being deposited in the post postage prepaid in an envelope addressed to it at that address.
- 18. Governing Law and Jurisdiction
- 18.1 This Deed and any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with it or its subject matter or formation (including non-contractual disputes or claims) shall be governed by and construed in accordance with English law.
- 18.2 The courts of England have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute arising out of or in connection with this Deed (including a dispute regarding the existence, validity or termination of this Deed).

This Deed has been entered into as a deed on the date stated at the beginning of this Deed.

SCHEDULE 1

Bank Balances

SCHEDULE 2

Charged Contracts

SCHEDULE 3

Permitted Security Interests

SCHEDULE 4

<u>Properties</u>

SCHEDULE 5

SIGNATURE PAGE

e 1922 mesent Mare		
EXECUTED as a deed for and on behalf of EDMONDSON'S PROFESSIONAL SERVICES LIMITED)	
by)	Director
in the presence of:)	
Witness Signature PM	Angel Marie Control of the Control o	,
Witness Name PRZRICIA	rear	PPE
Witness Address 6 5 BAR/		ANE
SALE CHESHLY	E M	33 6SH
The Chargee		
EXECUTED as a deed)	
for and on behalf of)	Chloendellan
JUST CASH FLOW PLC)	્રક્ષો કુરુ કુરુ કે કે કે કુરુ કુરુ કુરુ કુરુ
by)	Director
in the presence of:	,	
Witness Signature		
Witness Name LUUI MCGUEE		
Witness Address 11), Intumotion	ral House	
Stanley Bouleward, Glasgo		

Andrew Section and Parket

grafig to distribute		
。 1987年中華教師		
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
	:	
	:	
en e		
particular of the control of the con		
Appendix sections		
Angenguris egsattas		
garagete fillere a		
en de la companya de La companya de la co		
九字 医克里克斯 医牙克斯 等等的	a de la companion de la compan	
	Winds.	
ीर व्यवस्थान के अध्यासी व		
jamatarajii (kaleeneri)		
en errent in de austrick		